





342. These municipal ARC auctions began to clear at interest rates up to 15

percent per annum.

343. These rates put an extreme burden on the municipal issuer clients who

had to pay these rates.

344. Seceing the pain that this situation was causing, Mohanty sent an email

on February 14 to Shulman in which she states:

After the fails—I am being bombarded!!!! Every muni issuer

(even just our arcs) are asking for [letter of credit] to convert. We

have a money making opportunity!!! We are rarely in the

leverage position. I think we should [sic] as much of our capacity

as possible for core munis — they are desperate. . . . [Emphasis

added]
(See Composite Exhibit 29).

345. Shulman responded: “Am aware — sit tight - we are at the gates—great
chance for us to step in.” (See Composite Exhibit 29).

346. Later on February 14, Shulman sent an email to Mohanty, which stated,

in relevant part:

unprecedented opportunity to restructure a 300 bn overall failed
auction market. . we have the relationships, access, expertise to be
a true differentiator in the industry .. we need to have the tools to
be able to take advantage of this situation so that we can continue
to service wm as well as bring value added revenues to the ib . . .

(See Composite Exhibit 29).

| 347. In another February 14, 2008 email, Shulman referred to this as “the
single greatest opportunity in decades for us to leverage our banking relationships
more now than ever as we embark on a journey to restructure a 300 bn market in arcs

... This is a bankers dream market.” [Emphasis added] (See Composite Exhibit

29).
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4. UBS Putting Misleading Spin on U-4 Filings

348. In a document dated March 12, 2008 titled Regulatory Reporting of
ARS Client Complaints,” UBS stated:

Due to the complexity and sensitivity of the ARS issues, when

making U4 filings the Firm, where appropriate, will add language
that the complaint was due to the market dislocation.

(See Exhibit 30).

349. When disclosing a customer complaint using the form U-4 on the CRD,
the registrant is given an opportunity to "provide a brief summary of the circumstances
leading to the customer complaint, arbitration/CFTC reparation and/or civil litigation as
well as the current status or final disposition(s)."

350. Inresponse to this question for most, if not all, of UBS Financial
Services' U-4 Amendments reporting customer complaints relating to ARS, UBS
Financial Services stated: "THE COMPLAINT AROSE BECAUSE OF
UNPRECEDENTED MARKET EVENTS THAT CAUSED THE BREAKDOWN OF
LIQUIDITY IN THE MARKET FOR ARS."

351. Inlight of the facts set forth above this characterization of the complaint
arising “because of unprecedented market events” is misleading.

352. In particular, the term “unprecedented” is misleading given the fact that
UBS voluntarily walked away from certain of its ARS and intentionally let those fail in
August 2007.

353. In addition, the characterization that the complaints “arose” because of

unprecedented market events is misleading because they arose, at least in large part,
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from how UBS marketed these products to customers and UBS’ lack of meaningful
disclosures about its auction program.

5. Loans to Clients

354. UBS consistently refused clients” demands to purchase back the ARS
that had been sold to them.

355. UBS offered to loan clients money using the ARS as collateral.

356. Under the loan scenario, the loans would be the personal obligations of
the client. The client would not be able to use the ARS to pay down the debt unless
and until those securities became liquid again.

357. On the question of whether those clients who had partaken of this loan
program would be able to leave UBS, Hausmann testified as follows:

Q. If someone owns one of these securities, a UBS Financial

Services client, and they have the loan out from UBS and they

decide to leave UBS and go to another broker-dealer, they’d still

owe the money to UBS?

A. Yeah, no, if there’s a loan and so specifically if there’s a

loan versus the collateral, I believe that they would require to be —

keep that collateral at our firm.

Q. So those people couldn’t leave UBS as clients until they
paid off the loan, is that —

A. That’s correct, they could pay off the loan and then once
they were — the loan, the terms of the loan were satisfied they
could move their securities.

5. UBS Began Selectively Clearing Auctions
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358.  After the auctions failed, Shulman requested and obtained authorization
to selectively clear auctions.

359. InaFebruary 15, 2008 email from Shulman to Jackman, he stated:
“You can selectively . . . step in to clear auctions — where appropriate — also failed
auction paper you can trade—do not want inventory to go any higher by 500 mm from
where we are.” (The email is included in Composite Exhibit 31).

360. In an email dated March 1, 2008 to Long and Schwyter, Shulman stated:
“we have authorization from Scoby to selectively step in and clear auctions where we
see appropriate to facilitate WM for their needs—the approved amount is up to 500
mm. The intent is solely to service our WM partners and we are choosing to do so only
on core muni arcs where max rate resets are very high.” (The email is included in
Composite Exhibit 31).

361. When asked why they were focusing on core municipal auction rate
certificates and not Student Loan ARCS, Shulman testified: “on the student loan side
we did not have enough information where we felt comfortable enough participating in
those auctions in failed mode.” When pressed on what he meant by this, he stated:
“We needed — we needed to get more — more —more documentation on — on
understanding the — on understanding what happens in failed mode on the student
loans.” When asked: “wouldn’t you have understood that already before any of these
products were sold?” he responded: “We needed more information, okay, in terms of
how these would behave as a failed instrument in failed mode in student loans.”

362.  On page two of the March 1 email chain, an email from Long states:

“We roughly put up $36MM for deals with “A” or better underlying ratings, whose
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max rates are fixed at 12%-15%. All core muni issuers for which we are seeing
stronger demand. While at the same time, albeit small, injecting some liquidity for the
individual retail investor type who are looking to sell ARS regardless of their max
rate.” When Shulman was asked how it was decided which retail investors to provide
liquidity for, Shulman testified that, despite the fact that he had obtained authorization
for this program, he did not know: “I don’t know how we determined which investors
and or which issues, aside from the high max rate paper, we were deciding to be able to
step in and clear.” (The email is included in Composite Exhibit 31)

363. In Shulman’s on-the-record testimony before the Division, he stated I
can’t tell you the parameters and how we selected which auctions we chose to allow to
clear.” When, asked “so, who would be aware of those parameters?” he answered
“Chris Long would.” Ironically, in an email to Long dated March 1, 2008, when asked
whether UBS had decided to start supporting auctions again, “what our policy exactly
is” and “what are the set/agreed limits around starting to support auctions again?”,
Long forwarded the email to Shulman, stating “I think you are better fit to answer the
follow up questions.” Shulman replied: “Yup doing now.” (The email is included in
Composite Exhibit 31)

D. Books and Records Violations

364. As of the date of this Administrative Complaint, UBS has not provided a
complete response to the subpoenas served on March 28, 2008 (the “March 28

Subpoena™).

365. UBS’ response to Documents Request No. 6 is one example of the

number gaps in production.
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366. Document Request No. 6 stated: “Provide all marketing materials and
disclosure documents provided by UBS Personnel [from January 1, 2007 to the present]
to Massachusetts customers pertaining to ARS.” The production date specified in the
March 28 Subpoena was April 11, 2008. Upon request of UBS, the Division granted an
extension of this deadline to April 18. On April 21, the Division received a letter dated
April 18, 2008, which indicated that UBS had only provided firm-wide pre-approved
ARS marketing materials available for use by FAs “that were likely provided to
Massachusetts customers.” UBS indicated, without having obtained an extension from
the Division, that the remaining material would be produced before May 2. On May 2,
the Division received “hard-copy marketing and disclosure documents collected from
Financial Advisors’ client files and branch management files at ten Massachusetts
branch locations.” By letter dated May 21, the Division stated:

In Document Request No. 6, the Massachusetts Securities Division

(the “Division”) requested “all marketing materials and disclosure

documents provided by UBS Personnel to Massachusetts

customers pertaining to ARS.”

UBS responded with pre-approved marketing materials and

“hard-copy marketing and disclosure documents collected from

Financial Advisors’ client files and branch management files at ten

Massachusetts branch locations.” The Division did not authorize

any limitation on the scope of this request. If Massachusetts

clients were serviced by Financial Advisors outside of those ten

locations, then all responsive documents from the other locations

must be produced. In addition, if Massachusetts clients were

serviced by locations outside of Massachusetts, such as Thomas

Lips’ group’s office in Connecticut, then responsive files from
those locations must be provided as well.
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367. The remaining portion of Document Request No. 6 has not been
provided. In fact, by letter dated June 16, 2008 indicating that it “aims to complete this
production by July 14, 2008,” more than three months after the subpoena was sent.

368. UBS’ inability to produce FA files, which are basic business records, to
the Division in a timely manner violate the provisions of the Act and Regulations set
forth in Section VIII below.

369. In addition, UBS’ failure to retain copies of its conference calls to its
FAs (especially those which were recorded for playback at a later date) constitutes
books and records violations.

VIL VIOLATIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS

A. COUNT I - VIOLATIONS OF §101 BY UBS SECURITIES AND UBS
FINANCIAL SERVICES

370. Section 101 of the Act provides in pertinent part:

It is unlawful for any person, in connection with the offer, sale, or
purchase of any security, directly or indirectly:

(1) to employ any device, scheme or artifice to defraud,

(2) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to
state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they are made,

not misleading, or

(3) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which
operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.

371. The Division herein re-alleges and restates the allegations and facts set
forth in paragraphs 1 through 370 above.
372. The conduct of UBS, as described above, constitutes violations of

M.G.L. c. 110A, § 101.
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B. COUNT II - VIOLATIONS OF § 204 (a)(2)(B) BY UBS SECURITIES AND UBS

373.

374.

FINANCIAL SERVICES
Section 204 (a)(2)(B) of the Act provides in pertinent part:

(a) The secretary may by order impose an administrative fine or censure
or deny, suspend, or revoke any registration or take any other appropriate
action if he finds (1) that the order is in the public interest and (2) that the
applicant or registrant or, in the case of a broker-dealer or investment
adviser, any partner, officer, or director, any person occupying a similar
status or performing similar functions, or any person directly or indirectly
controlling the broker-dealer or investment adviser:—

(B) has willfully violated or willfully failed to comply with any provision
of this chapter . . . .

The Division herein re-alleges and restates the allegations and facts set

forth in paragraphs 1 through 373 above.

375.

The conduct of UBS as described above, constitutes violations of M.G.L.

c. 1104, § 204 (a)(2)(B).

C. COUNT III - VIOLATIONS OF § 204 (a)(2)(G) BY UBS SECURITIES AND

376.

377.

UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES
Section 204 (a)(2)(G) of the Act provides in pertinent part:

(a) The secretary may by order impose an administrative fine or censure
or deny, suspend, or revoke any registration or take any other appropriate
action if he finds (1) that the order is in the public interest and (2) that the
applicant or registrant or, in the case of a broker-dealer or investment
adviser, any partner, officer, or director, any person occupying a similar
status or performing similar functions, or any person directly or indirectly
controlling the broker-dealer or investment adviser:—

(G) has engaged in any unethical or dishonest conduct or practices in the
securities, commodities or insurance business.

The Division herein re-alleges and restates the allegations and facts set

forth in paragraphs 1 through 376 above.
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378. The conduct of UBS as described above, constitutes violations of M.G.L.
c. 1104, § 204 (a)(2)(G).

379. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the conduct of UBS set
forth above constitutes violations of the following provisions of the Regulations:

950 CMR Section 12.204 (1)(a):

4) Recommending to a customer the purchase, sale or
exchange of any security without reasonable grounds to believe that
such transaction or recommendation is suitable for the customer based
upon reasonable inquiry concerning the customer’s investment
objectives, financial situation and needs, and any other relevant
information known by the broker-dealer.

(6) Exercising any discretionary power in effecting a
transaction for a customer’s account without first obtaining written
authority from the customer, unless the discretionary power relates
solely to the time and/or price for the execution of the order.

(14) Representing that a security is being offered to a
customer “at the market” or a price relevant to the market price unless
the broker-dealer knows or has reasonable grounds to believe that a
market for such security exists other than that made, created or
controlled by such broker-dealer, or by any person for whom he/she is
acting or with whom he is associated in such distribution, or any person

controlled by, controlling or under common control with such broker-
dealer.

(28) Failing to comply with any applicable provision of the
NASD rules of Fair Practice.

380. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, applicable
NASD rules include the following:
2310. Recommendations to Customers (Suitability)
(a) In recommending to a customer the purchase, sale or
exchange of any security, a member shall have reasonable grounds

for believing that the recommendation is suitable for such
customer upon the basis of the facts, if any, disclosed by such
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customer as to his other security holdings and as to his financial
situation and needs...

IM-2310-2. Fair Dealing with Customers

(a)(1) Implicit in all member and registered representative
relationships with customers and others is the fundamental
responsibility for fair dealing. Sales efforts must therefore be
undertaken only on a basis that can be judged as being within the
ethical standards of the Association’s Rules, with particular
emphasis on the requirement to deal fairly with the public...

2760. Offerings ‘At the Market’

A member who is participating or who is otherwise
financially interested in the primary or secondary distribution of
any security which is not admitted to trading on a national
securities exchange, shall make no representation that such
security is being offered to a customer “at the market” or at a price
related to the market price unless such member knows or has
reasonable grounds to believe that a market for such security exists
other than that made, created, or controlled by such member, or by
any person for whom he is acting or with whom he is associated in
such distribution, or by any person controlled by, controlling or
under common control with such member.

2110. Standards of Commercial Honor and Principles of
Trade

A member, in the conduct of its business, shall observe
high standards of commercial honor and just and equitable
principles of trade.

2120. Use of Manipulative, Deceptive or Other Fraudulent
Devices

No member shall effect any transaction in, or induce the
purchase or sale of, any security by means of any manipulative,
deceptive or other fraudulent device or contrivance.

2210. Communications with the Public
(d) Content Standards

(1) Standards Applicable to All Communications with
the Public
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(A) All member communications with the public shall be based
on principles of fair dealing and good faith, must be fair and
balanced, and must provide a sound basis for evaluating the facts
in regard to any particular security or type of security, industry, or
service. No member may omit any material fact or qualification if
the omission, in the light of the context of the material presented,
would cause the communications to be misleading.

(B) No member may make any false, exaggerated, unwarranted
or misleading statement or claim in any communication with the
public. No member may publish, circulate or distribute any public
communication that the member knows or has reason to know
contains any untrue statement of a material fact or is otherwise
false or misleading. . . .

D. COUNT IV - VIOLATIONS OF § 204 (a)(2)(J) BY UBS SECURITIES AND UBS
FINANCIAL SERVICES
381.  Section 204 (a)(2)(J) of the Act provides in pertinent part:
The secretary may by order deny, suspend, or revoke any registration if
he finds (1) that the order is in the public interest and (2) that the
applicant or registrant (J) has failed reasonably to supervise agents,
investment adviser representatives or other employees to assure
compliance with this chapter.
382. The Division herein re-alleges and restates the allegations and facts set
forth in paragraphs 1 through 381 above.
383. The conduct of UBS, as described above, constitutes violations of
M.G.L. c. 110A, § 204 (a)(2)(J).
E. COUNT V - VIOLATION OF SECTION 203 BY UBS SECURITIES AND UBS
FINANCIAL SERVICES
384.  Section 203(a) of the Act states:
Every registered broker-dealer and investment advisor shall make
and keep accounts, correspondence, memoranda, papers, books,

and other records as the secretary prescribes by rule or order.

385. 950 CMR Section 12.203(2) states in relevant part:
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Each broker-dealer shall maintain the following records: . . .

(b) All records required to be maintained by SEC Rules
17a-3 and 4 (17 CFR 240.17a-3 and 17CRF 240.17a-4).

(¢) All records required to be maintained by any SRO or
national exchange of which the broker-dealer is a member.

386. The Division herein re-alleges and restates the allegations and facts set
forth in paragraphs 1 through 385 above.
387. The conduct of UBS, as described above, constitutes violations of
M.G.L. c. 110A, § 203.
VIIL. STATUTORY BASIS FOR RELIEF

Violations, Cease and Desist Orders and Costs

388. Section 407A(a) of the Act provides in pertinent part that:

(a) If the secretary determines, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, that

any person has engaged in or is about to engage in any act or practice

constituting a violation of any provision of this chapter or any rule or order

issued thereunder, he may order such person to cease and desist from such

unlawful act or practice and may take affirmative action, including the

imposition of an administrative fine, the issuance of an order for accounting,

disgorgement or rescission or any other relief as in his judgment may be

necessary to carry out the purposes of [the Act].

389. The Division herein re-alleges and restates the allegations and facts set
forth in paragraphs 1 through 388 above.

390. UBS directly and indirectly engaged in the acts, practices, and courses of
business as set forth in this Complaint above, and it is the Division’s belief that UBS

will continue to engage in acts and practices similar in subject and purpose, which

constitute violations if not ordered to cease and desist.
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IX.PUBLIC INTEREST

For any and all of the reasons set forth above, it is in the public interest and will

protect Massachusetts investors to provide the relief requested in Section X below.
X. RELIEF REQUESTED

Wherefore, the Enforcement Section of the Division requests that Hearing Officer
take the following action:

A. Find that all the sanctions and remedies detailed herein are in the public
interest and necessary for the protection of Massachusetts investors;

B. Find as fact the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 to 390 of the

Complaint; and

C. Enter an order (a) requiring UBS to permanently cease and desist from
committing any further violations of the Act and Regulations, (b) requiring UBS to offer
rescission of sales of ARS at par (or res.titution to investors who have already sold
below par) on the terms and conditions that a Hearing Officer deems appropriate, (c)
censuring UBS (d) requiring UBS to pay an administrative fine in an amount and upon
such terms and conditions as a Hearing Officer may determine, and (e) requiring UBS to
take any other action that a Hearing Officer may deem appropriate in the public interest

and necessary for the protection of Massachusetts investors.
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Dated: June 26, 2008

ENFORCEMENT SECTION
MASSACHUSETTS SECURITIES DIVISION

W\

Joshda S. Grinspoofi, Enforcement Attorney
William Donahue, Enforcement Attorney
Trevor Perkins, Enforcement Attorney
Kevin Morris, Enforcement Attorney
Patrick Ahearn, Chief of Enforcement
Massachusetts Securities Division

One Ashburton Place, Room 1701

Boston, Massachusetts 02108

(617) 727-3548
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